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September 4, 1990

Mr. Stewart D. Ebneter
Regional Administrator
Office of Enforceawnt
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Cocatssion
Office of Covernmental and Public Affaira
Region 11
101 Marietta Street, N.W.
Atlanta, CA 30323

Enclosed you will find the " Reply to a Hocice of Viol.. ion.
Please feel free to contact us if you have any further information.

Cordially yours,

r--

'A

Frieda Silva de Roldin g
Director

FSR/vac

Enclosure

P.D. The original document will be send today Feder ! Express.
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August 30, 1990

Stewart D. Ebneter
Regional Administrator
Office of Enforcement
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Office of Governmental and Public Affairs
Region II ,

101 Marietta Street, N.W.
Atlanta, GA 30323

_

,

Docket NOS 030-13584
030-31462

License No. 52-01946-07
52-01946-09 '

Ret Reply to a Notice of Violation

Dear Mr. Ebneter:

According to the provisions of 10CFR.2.201', the University of
Puerto Rico Medical Sciences campus is required to submit a written
explanation to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission regarding the
alleged violations stated-in your Notice of Violation at July 18,
1990.

A detailed explanation of the alleged violations and the-
corrective measures taken are:

_
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I. Violations of License 52-01946-07 (Broad Scope)

A. 1. Violation is admitted.

2. The reason for these violations were as follow: !

ADril 13. 19 ts 9

The previous Radiation Safety Officer resigned on
April 10, 1989 and the new RSO was appointed on April |
11, 1969. The implant was performed without
notifying the newly appointed RSO due to a lag in
the communique notifying the Radiotherapy personnel
of the appointment.

October 11. 1989 i

l

The RSO was not notitled by the Radiotherapy
personnel of this implant. This was due to inadequate I

'performance on the part of the Radiotherapy personnel.
1

January 4. 1990 ]

The Campus was on Christmas recess. The Radiation
Safety Office technician (Mr. Jose Robles) was on
vacation. The Radiotherapy personnel did not notify the
RSO even though he was on call. This was due to
inadequate performance on the part of the Radiotherapy
Personnel.

3. Corrective steps
'

a) Concerning these violations a meeting was held
.

on April 10, 1990 with Mr. Onello Ndnez, Dean
of Administration, Dr. Petra Burke, Acting Dean
of Medicine, Dr. Victor Marcial, Director of
Radiotherapy, Dr. Frieda Silva, Director of i

Nuclear Medicine and Chair of the Radiological
Sciences Department and t53 Radiation Safety
Committee, Mr. Jos6 A. San Inocencio, Assitant
Dean of Administration, Mrs. Ida Nilsa Guzman,
Associate Dean et Administration and Dr.
Heriberto Torres, Campus RSO. Dr. Marcial was
notified that these violations were
unacceptable, and a corrective action plan van -

drafted to prevent recurrence.

b) These violations (particularly 10/11/89 and
1/4/90) were isolated cases. The previous
record on implant surveys has been
satisfactory.
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c) The following written procedures have been: ;

established to prevent further violations.

- The Radiation Safety Office will be J

notified at least 2 days in advance of any '

plannea implant therapy by the Radiotnerapy
Divialon.

,

- When the patient is admitted to the hospital,-
the nursing aupervisor will notif y ~ the -|
Radiation Safety Office within 4 hours'of- d
admission. '

!- The physcist in charge of performing the dose icalculation, Will not11y, in writing, tne' . 1Madiation Safety Office before.the implant' j
is performed.

- The Radiation Safety Office will perform the
survey af ter implanting the material and will-

1

record the date when source (s) will be.
removed.

;

- Violation of this procedure will-be submitted I
to disciplinary sanctions, that may result
in the termination of employment of the. Hpersonnel involved. i

4. Corrective steps for prevention of 'tuture
violations.

- Refer to 1A3.c
~

b. Compliance: September 4, 199U

B. 1. Violation is admitted.

2. Reason for violation: The R80 was not notitled by
the : Radiotherapy Personnel of the removal of the ~

>

implant. LThis was due to the inadequate perf ormance-
of the Radiotherapy personnel.

J. Corrective steps -

a) The RBO w111 be notitled of tho'date and time
of the implant removal. The RSO will perform
-the appropiate surveys.

1

m

., .
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b) Violation of this procedure will be submitted
to disciplinary ranctions that may result in
the termination ot employment of the personnel
involved.

4. Corrective stepc to prevent future violations

- Refer to 1B3b

5. Compliance: September 4, 1990

C. 1. Violation is admitted.

2. Reason for violation: The Nuclear Medicine
Technologist in charge of the Hot Laboratory left
the door opened and the area unattended. Lack of
air conditioning in the room contributed to this
behavior.

3. Corrective steps

All Nuclear Medicine Technologist were informed of
the violation and the serious implication of these
actions.

Written reprimands will be issued if the violation
is detected by the Nuclear Medicine Physicist.
Violations will be submitted to disciplinary
sanctions tnat may result in termination of

employment.

4. Corrective steps to prevent future violations

In addition to the corrective actions taken
previously, the following steps were taken:

a) A central air conditioning unit was
installed inside the room.

b) A mechanical device was installed in.the
coor to prevent it from being left opon.

.

c) A glass viewing section was installed in
the door to look inside without the need --

to open it.

b. Compliance already achieved

a.
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D. 1. Violation is admitted, j

2. Reason for violation: The RSO did not perform the
leak tests when required. There was inadequate i

supervision of the RSO pesonnel. There was lack of I

a written working plan for the year.

3. Corrective steps

a) The leak test for all sealed sources were H
'

done on April 19, 1990. All of them showed
less than 0.005 mC1 of removable
contamination. j

b) An annual working plan was prepared by the
RSO stating all activities to be done
during the year.

14. Corrective steps to prevent. future violations
- An' annual work plan will be prepared by.the

RSO. The plan will be submitted for approval
to the Campus Radiological Saf sty Committee.
Proper implementation of the plan will be the ,

responsability of the RSO and his Ottice.- |
H

b. Compliance already achieved.

E. 1. Violation is admitted.

2. Reason for violation: The RSO did not pertorm the
quarterly inventory, instead he performed a blannual !

|inventory.

3. Corrective steps

a) The physical inventory is now'in compliance with !

10CPR3b.b9 (g).

b) From April 2, 1990 to present, the inventory i
has been conducted every 3 months as required -

by the regulations.

4. Corrective Steps to prevent tuture violations . _

- The physical inventory is included in the
annual working plan.- !

,

- The Radiological Safety' Committee will !

perform a quarterly review of the activities !

presented in the annual working plan.

b. Compliance already achieved.

-I
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F. 1. Violation la admitt6d.

2. Reason for violation No written records of the-
surveys were kept in the Radiological Safety Office
or elsewhere. The ambient dopo measurements were
perf ormed blannualy during the physica11nventories.

3. Corrective action

The ambient done measurements are performed during
the quarterly physical inventories. Record of
this measurement is kept in the same document
used for the physical inventories.

4. Corrective steps to prevent future violations
- The ambient dose measurements is part of the

annual working plan of the RSO. It will be
reviewed by the Radiological Safety Committee
on a quarterly basis.

5. Compliance already achieved.

G. 1. Violation la admitted.

2. Reason for violation: The Radiation Safety Otilce
f ailed perf orm f ume hood air volocity measurements.

3. Corrective actions ;

a) The air velocity measuremont at dif ferent pointo
on the chemical hood at the Nuclear Medicine hot
room were pertormec cy tne Hadiation Sarety
Office on August 31, 1990. -

4. Corrective steps to prevent future violations

- The air flow measurement at the Nuclear R

Medicine hot room will be performod every six
months or more frequently if needed. Results
will be procented to the Radiation Safety
Committee by the RSO.

5. Compliance September 4, 1990.
-

H. 1. Violation is admitted.
2. Reason for violation: The RSO failed poriorm air

flow measurements at the Nuclear Hodicine
Laboratory.

i

|
l _.
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3. Corrective actions

a) The air flow measuremnts for Xe-133 were
performed by the xaalation Sataty Otilce on
August 31, 1990.

4. Corrective steps to prevent future violations

- The measurements will be portormed together 1

with all other necessary test, ao scheduled
in the annual work plan. Measurements will
be performed every six months, or more
frequently if needed. This activities will l
be reviewed in the Radiation Safety Committes ;

meetings.

1. 1. Violation is admitted. ,

i

2. Reason for violation: The Campus RSO resigned April
10, 1990. The Radiotherapy personnel opened the

,

lpackages without notifying the newly appointed R80,
This was due to lack of communication.

3. Corrective actions

a) Radiotherapy staff was Instructed on the
importance of complying with the requirements
of the license. Violation of this procedure
will be submitted to disciplinary sanctions that

!may result in the termination of employment of
the personnel involved.

i

4. Corrective steps to prevent future violations
- The established procedure will be published

and distributed to all Radiotherapy perconnel
and statt. It will included a statement
regarding the penalty for violating the |
procedure.

5. Full compliance already achieved.

J. 1. Violation is admitted.

2. Reason for violation: The new RSO failed to -

- performed the annual review ot the Hadiation ' atetyJ
Program with the committee.
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3. Corrective actions

a) The revision of 1989 was performed on May 1990,
and the 1990 revision will be presented on the
first mooting on 1991.

4. Corrective steps to prevent future violations
- The review of the program is part of the
annual working plan. The Radiation Safety
Committee, on its first quarterly muuting
will include as part et its agenda the j

revision of the program presentea ny tne Mt:fu. j
i

b. Full compliance already achieved. !

|

K. 1. Violation is admitted.

2. Reason f or violation: All the required test were
pertormed by the Nuclear Medicine Physicist, and the
Rbo falled to sign the records.

3. Corrective action

a) All records were reviewed and signed by the RSO
as required by lucyxJo. .

4. The Nuclear Medicine Physicist will notity the RSO
in writting when the test are performed. The RSO
will review and algn all the records required for
the dose calibrator. He shall report to the
Radiation Safety Committee on the status of the
testing and the records.

5. Full compliance already achieved.

II. Violations of License No. 52-01946-09

A. 1. Violation is admitted.

2. Reason for violation: The spot checks were
adequately performed by the Assistant Physicist, the
Radiotherapy Physicist failed to review them as
required. _

3. Corrective action

a) All spot checks from April to dato were roviewed
by the Radiotherapy Physicist.

.
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4. Corrective steps to prevent tuture violations

- Dr. Heriberto Torres, will only have the
duties of Radiotherapy Physicist, as soon
as the new RSO is certified by NRC. An
ammendment to the 11 cense, will be submitted
with the documentation of the newly appointed
RSO. He will continue on the position unt11
a final full time appointment is made.

5. Full compliance already achieved.

B. 1. Violation is admitted.

2. Reason for violation: The teletherapy physicist
failed to perform the required calibration.

3. Corrective action

a) Full calibration was performed by the the
teletherapy on April 6, 1990.

4. Corrective steps to prevent tuture-violations

- Dr. Heriberto Torres will continue as
Radiotherapy Physicist until a tull time
appointment is made.

5. Full compliance already achieved.

|
C. 1. Vio1ations is admitted.

'

,

2. Reason for violation: The teletherapy pnysicast anc
his' staff failed to perform the leak test of the
teletherapy unit.

3. Corrective actions

a) The leak test were performed on April 19, 1990
and it was satisfactory.

4. Corrective steps to prevent future violations
.

- The teletherapy physicist and his staf f will
perform the test every 6 months and report .

'

tne results to the RSO. The RSO w211 report
to the Radiation Safety Committee.

5. Full compliance already achieved.
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We hereby request that the proposec civil penalties be
decreased or eliminated due to the f act that the alleged violations
were corrected, and the University of Puerto Rico has taken the
necessary steps to avoid future violations.

In your evaluation of our response to the Notice of Violation,
please consider, that the University of Puerto Rico is a non-profit
organization dedicated to higher education. In particular, the
University of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences Campus provides the
services for medically indigent patients which would otherwise not
receive these services anywhere else in Puerto Rico.

The University of Puerto Rico in Itc commitment to public
nealtn teaching and research has a vital Interest in mantaining
to its fullest extent this license. Therefore, it has committed
itseiz to a comprehensive action plan, that will prevent the
occurrence of these type of incidents.

Cordially yours,

$d $\
Manuel Marina Mu
Acting Chancellor
Medical Sciences Campuc

1 hereby certify that the above information as true to the
extentr 01 my knowledge.

S

- HabuelMarina,MD
Acting Chancellor
Medical Sciences Campus

.

.

l

;

1

I

l
I
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Docket Nos. 030-13584'' License Nos. 52-01946-07
030-31462 ,. 52-01946-09
030-01183' 52-01986-04
030-01182 52-01986-01
030-14313 52-10510-04
030-19550 52-19434-02

/ EA 91-089

University of Puerto Rico

s t

General Post Office Box 364984
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00936-4984

Gentlemen:

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTY - $6,250
(INSPECTION REPORT N05. 52-01946-07/91-01, 52-01946-09/91-01,
52-01986-04/91-01, 52-01986-01/91-01, 52-10510-04/91-01, AND
52-19434-02/91-01)

This refers to the Nuclear Regulatory Comission (NRC) inspection conducted by
Ms. C. Connell, Mr. H. Bermudez, Mr. J. Ennis, and Mr. L. Franklin on June 17-21,
1991, at the University of Puerto Rico facilities located on the Medical ;

Sciences Campus, College of Natural Sciences Campus, Mayaguez Campus, and the
Agricultural Experiment Station, in Puerto Rico. The inspection included a ;
review of the organization and administration of each licensed program,

,

radiation safety aspects of each program, radiation safety training of person- I

nel, and radioactive waste storage and disposal. In addition, the inspection i

placed special emphasis on the review of management control and oversight of-
licensed activities. The report documenting this inspection was sent to you by
letter dated July 23,,1991. As a result of this inspection, multiple failures
to comply with NRC requirements were identified. An enforcement conference was
held on July 26, 1991, with Dr. Saldana and other members of your staff in the
Region II office to discuss the violations, their cause, and your corrective i

actions to preclude recurrence. A summary of this conference was sent to you !by letter dated August 14, 1991. '

The violations in Section I of the enclosed Notice of Violation and Proposed ,

Imposition of Civil Penalty (Notice) were identified by the NRC during the '

inspection of the broad scope NRC license program at the Medical Sciences
Campus and include failures to: secure licensed material against unauthorized
removal, conduct leak tests of sealed sources'at the required intervals,
properly evaluate dosimetry data, survey radiopharmaceutical waste storage
areas, properly label radioactive material containers, adhere to Radiation
Safety Comittee meeting requirements, properly maintain sealed source inventory

kj,,,/s-)A)/Lfu' 7 ' " ' ' ' /
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records, and maintain leak test records for sealed sources. Additional details i

regarding the violations are described in the previously issued NRC inspection
,

report referred to above. ;

We are concerned with the results of the inspection of the University's Medical
Sciences Campus broad license, particularly the research program. A similar
concern was made known to you previously as a result of an NRC inspection
conducted in April 1990 which resulted in the imposition of a civil penalty of
$12,500 for violations associated with both your broad license, specifically
the nuclear medicine program operated under that license, and the teletherapy 1

license. The 11 violations that were cited against your broad license resulted ,

in a civil penalty of $6,250. In our letter of July 19, 1990, which transmitted i
the Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties, you were i

informed then of the NRC's concern about your inadequate management oversight !
and control and your apparent inability to assure lasting effectiveness of !
corrective actions. In addition, you were advised that repetitious violations
were of particular concern and could not be tolerated. During this inspection,
however, there were violations cited that were similar to previously cited
violations.

It is apparent that the root causes of your continuing poor perfonnance are
inadequate management oversight, your staff's lack of understanding of the ;

regulatory requirements associated with your broad license, and your failure to I

assure that corrective actions to resolve violations in one area of your broad
license (nuclear medicine) were applied to other areas such as research.
Effective management oversight and control is extremely important because of
the wide range of authority associated with your broad license. Therefore, in
accordance with the " General Statement of Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforce- 1

ment Actions," (Enforcement Policy) 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C (1991), the
violations in Section I are classified in the aggregate as a Severity Level III
problem.

To emphasize again the need for stronger management oversight, more effective
control of your licensed radiation programs, and effective implementation of
corrective actions throughout the entire program so as to ensure that problems
and potential violations are self-identified, I have been authorized, after
consultation with the Director, Office of Enforcement, and the Deputy Executive
Director for Nuclear Materials Safety, Safeguards, and Operations Support, to
issue the enclosed Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty
(Notice) in the amount of $6,250 for the Severity Level III problem.

The base . ue of a civil penalty for a Severity Level III problem is $2,500.
The escala o on and mitigation factors in the Enforcement Policy were considered.
The base civil penalty has been increased by 50 percent because the violations
were identified by the NRC. Neither escalation nor mitigation was warranted
for corrective action to prevent recurrence because, even though imediate'

corrective actions were taken for some:of the violations, adequate long tenn
corrective action to address the root cause issues had not been formulated
and implemented at the time of the enforcement conference (for example, actions
to assure adequate understanding of the regulatory requirements associated with
yourbroadlicense). Additional escalation of 100 percent was warranted
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because of your poor past enforcement history. It is apparent that the
corrective actions implemented in response to the enforcement action, EA 90-076,
which was issued on July 19, 1990, have not been effective in preventing non-
compliance with the regulations as identified in Inspection Report 52-01946-07/91-01.
None of the other factors warranted further adjustment of the civil penalty.
Therefore, based on the above, the base civil penalty has been increased by 150
percent.

As discussed during the enforcement conference, the NRC expects the University
of Puerto Rico to bring its programs into full compliance. During the enforce-
ment conference it was evident that the University is committed to long term
program improvement and that you now recognize the importance of focusing
management attention and' resources on these problems. It is particularly

,

noteworthy that Dr. Saldana has decided to appoint a high level official from '

his imediate staff to provide the day-to-day management oversight and control
of licensed programs throughout the University system and that this individual
will report directly to Dr. Saldana. Also, Dr. Saldana's personal assurance
that there is full institutional comitment to the resolution of the problems
should have both an imediate and far reaching positive effect on your efforts
to achieve and maintain compliance. !

The violations in Section II of the enclosed Notice were identified by the NRC )
during the inspection performed at the College of Natural Sciences, Rio '

Piedras, and include failure to: check packages for contamination before !

opening, perform and record surveys, and verify that forms for receiving and l
handling radioactive material were completed properly. '

The violations in Section III of the enclosed Notice were identified by the NRC
during the inspection performed at the University's Agricultural Experiment
Station, Rio Piedras, and include failure to: perform inventories to account I

for all sources, properly secure licensed material, and properly post a
licensed material storage area. j

The violations in Section IV of the enclosed Notice were identified by the NRC
during the inspection performed at the University's Mayaguez campus, and
include failure to: perform annual audits of the radiation safety program,
perform inventories of licensed material, perform monthly surveys, conduct a
Radiation Survey Comittee meeting during fiscal year 1989, and post required
documents and notices at the Marine Sciences Laboratory.

Although the violations in Sections II through IV were categorized at either
Severity Level IV or V and were not assessed a civil penalty, they represent a
lapse in attention to detail which, if continued in the long term, could lead
to more serious violations and escalated enforcement action. It is apparent
that the root cause of several of these violations is inadequate training, a
recurrent problem that was noted throughout the inspection. We do recognize
that there has been some improvement as indicated by the inspection results in
the medical teletherapy license program. During the inspection in April 1990,
violations associated with that program also resulted in a civil penalty.
No violations associated with that program were identified during the June 1991
inspection.

-

|



i
|

'
.

University of puerto Rico 4 AUG 2 81991
..

During the inspection at the College of Natural Sciences in Rio Piedras, the
,

inspectors noted that records of routine contamination wipe surveys were being |

recorded in count; per minute (cpm) instead of disintegrations per minute !

(dpm), and that licersee personnel did not know the efficiency of the counting |
equipment used to count the wipe test samples. This resulted in licensee j

personnel not knowing whether they were exceeding their wipe test action !

level, which is 100 dpm per 100 square centimeters. To preclude further
occurrence of this type of potentially significant problem, you should include
in your response to this letter actions taken or planned to assure that the
efficiency of the counting equipment is known for all contamination wipe

,

surveys performed in connection with licensed activities under all of the :
University's NRC licenses, and that the results of the wipe test surveys are i

'recorded in dpm per 100 square centimeters, which is the unit of measurement
for wipe test action levels. This issue was discussed during the exit !
interview and identified as an apparent violation; however no violation is
being issued.

Lastly, but of no less significance, the NRC is particularly concerned about
the public health and safety implications associated with your lack of
aggressive action to resolve your radioactive waste storage and disposal
problem. Therefore, in addition to the information that you submitted in your ;

letter of August 6,1991, we are requesting the specific written infonnation '

identified below.
,

1

We emphasize that a license to use NRC regulated material is a privilege
granted by the NRC, and any further recurrence of violations or problems in
managing your licensed activities may result in escalated enforcement action, J

such as higher civil penalties or modification, suspension, or revocation of
your licenses.

I
You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions i

specified in the enclosed Notice when preparing your response. In addition to j
this response, we request that you develop and submit to NRC within 60 days of
the date of this letter:

1.a. A Radiation Safety Improvement Plan, suitable for incorporation into i

the terms and conditions of your licenses, that addresses those
actions necessary to ensure timely and lasting improvement in the
radiation safety program, improvements needed in procedures and
practices to achieve and maintain compliance with NRC requirements
and license conditions, and periodic internal or external audits that
you plan to implement to assess your program effectiveness.

1.b. A schedule for completion of all actions described in the plan,
,

- including interim milestones for the more complex actions. i
|

l2.a. A description of actions that you have taken or plan to take to
ensure that radioactive waste at the University of Puerto Rico is
properly identified, packaged, labeled, and stored; and that it is
secured against unauthorized removal and disposed of in accordance
with regulatory requirements.

2.b. A schedule for accomplishing the actions that you describe.
.
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NRC needs this information in order to have assurance that, in the future:
1) your licensed activities will be conducted in accordance with regulatory
reautrements and 2) the existing radioactive waste disposal problem at the
University of Puerto Rico will be resolved in a timely manner and in accordance
with regulatory requirements. If you do not intend to develop and submit to
NRC the information requested in Paragraphs 1 and 2 above, you are required,
pursuant to Section 182 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 as amended, to provide
in writing, under oath or affinnation, your reasons as to why you should not be
required to develop and submit the requested information.

After reviewing your responses, including your proposed corrective actions and
the results of future inspections, the NRC will deterinine whether further NRC
enforcement action is necessary to ensure compliance with NRC regulatory
requirements.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 ' the NRC's " Rules of Practice," a copy of
this letter and its enclosure w 11 Se placed in the hRC Public Document Room.

The responses directed by this ette' and the enclosed Notice are not subject
to the clearance procedures of ohe 0t ice of Management and Budget as required
by the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980, Pub. L. No. 96.511.

Should you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact us.

Sincerely, |
1

1,

h Md v
Stewart D. Ebneter
Regional Administrator

Enclosure:
Notice of Violation and Proposed

- Imposition of Civil Penalty
I

|

L -
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION-

AND
PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTY

University of Puerto Rico EA 91-089

Medical Sciences Campus Docket No. 030-13584 -
San Juan, Puerto Rico License No. 52-01946-07

College of Natural Sciences Docket No. 030-01183 '
Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico License No. 52-01986-04

Agricultural Experiment Station Docket No. 030-01182
Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico License No. 52-01986-01

Mayaguez Campus Docket No. 030-14313 '
Mayaguez, Puerto Rico License No. 52-10510-04

During an NRC inspection conducted on June 17 - 21, 1991 violations of NRC
requirements were identified, in accordance with the " General Statement of
Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C
(1991), the Nuclear Regulatory Comission proposes to impose a civil penalty
pursuant to Section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended (Act),
42 U.S.C. 2282, and 10 CFR 2.205. The particular violations and associated
civil penalty are set forth below:

1. Violations of License Number 52-01946-07(BroadLicense)
(Violations Assessed A Civil Penalty)

A. 10 CFR 20.207(a) requires that licensed materials stored in an
unrestricted area be secured against unauthorized removal from the
place of storage. 10 CFR 20.207(b) requires that materials not in
storage be tended under the constant surveillance and imediate
control of the licensee. As defined'in 10 CFR 20.3(a)(17), an
unrestricted area is any area to which access is not controlled by
the licensee for purposes of protection of individuals from exposure
to radiation and radioactive materials.

Contrary to the above, on June 18, 1991, licensed material consisting
of 250 microcuries of sulfur 35 located in an unlocked refrigerator
in Room 607A of the Medical Sciences Building, an unrestricted area,
was not secured against unauthorized removal and was not tended under
the constant surveillance and imediate control of the licensee.

This is a second repeat violation (Inspections 90-01 and 89-01).

B. 10CFR35.59(b)(2) requires,inpart,thatalicenseeinpossession
of a sealed source test the source for leakage at intervals not to
exceed six months or at other intervals approved by the Comission or
an Agreement State.
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Contrary to the above, sealed sources containing approximately 150
microcuries of cesium 137 and 150 microcuries of barium 133 with a
leak test frequency not to exceed six months were not tested for
leakage between April 3, 1990 and June 18, 1991, an interval exceeding
six months.

This is a repeat violation (Inspection 90-01).

C. 10 CFR 20.201(b) requires that the licensee make or cause to be made
such surveys as may be necessary to comply with the requirements of
Part 20 and which are reasonable under the circumstances to evaluate
the extent of radiation hazards that may be present. As defined in-
10CFR20,201(a)," survey"meansanevaluationoftheradiation
hazards incident to the production, use, release, disposal, or
presence of radioactive materials or other sources of radiation under
a specific set of conditions.

Contrary to the above, as of June 17, 1991, the licensee did not make
surveys to assure compliance with 10 CFR 20.101(a) that limits the
radiation exposure of individuals in a restricted area. Specifically,
in April and May 1990, the licensee's personnel dosimetry processor
notified the licensee that four dosimetry badges (three ring badges
and one whole body badge) were non-readable, and the licensee did not
make necessary surveys to evaluate the radiation dose received by the ,

'

individuals who used those badges.

D. Condition 12.C. of License No. 52-01946-07 requires that licensed
material for other than human use be used by, or under the supervi-
sion of, individuals designated by the Radiation Safety Comittee.

Contrary to the above, on June 18, 1991, a researcher located in Room
617A of the Medical Sciences Building was using sulfur 35 for other
than human use and was not designated by the Radiation Safety
Committee to do so, nor was he using the licensed material under the
supervision of an individual designated by the Radiation Safety -

Committee. The researcher ordered and received licensed material
under his own name and was not, at that time, conducting his research
under the supervision of an individual designated by the Radiation
Safety Comittee.

E. 10 CFR 35.70(b) requires the licensee to survey with a radiation
detection survey instrument at least once each week all areas where
radiopharmaceutical waste is stored. 10 CFR 35.70(h) requires the-
licensee to retain a record of this survey with specific information-
for three years.

Contrary to the above, between April 3,1990, and June 19, 1991, the
licensee did not survey with a radiation detection survey instrument
at least once each week in areas where radiopharmaceutical waste is
stored.
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F. 10 CFR 20.203(f) requires that, except as provided by 10 CFR 20.203(f)(3),
each container of licensed material bear a durable, clearly visible
label identifying the radioactive contents.

Contrary to the above:

1. On June 18, 1991, several containers of radioactive waste in the
waste storage building did not bear durable, clearly visible
labels identifying the radioactive contents and the containers
were not excepted from such labeling; and i

2. On June 19, 1991, a container of radioactive materials located |

in the sealed source storage vault below the Health Physics !
Office did not bear any label identifying the radioactive I

contents and the container was not excepted from such labeling. !

G. 10 CFR 35.22(a)(2) requires the Radiation Safety Comittee to meet at
least quarterly.

i

Contrary to the above, the Radiation Safety Comittee failed to meet
from December 20, 1989 through April 4,1990, and from December 19 j

1990 through April 3, 1991, periods in excess of one calendar '

quarter.

H. 10 CFR 35.22(a)(3) requires the Radiation Safety Comittee to .i

establish a quorum in order to conduct business with at least one-
half of the comittee's membership present, including a management
representative. |

Contrary to the above, on December 19, 1990, April 3, 1991, and
May 22, 1991, the Radiation Safety Comittee met and conducted
business without first establishing a quorum in that a representative
of management was not present at those meetings.

I. Condition 20 of License No. 52-01946-07 requires that the licensee
conduct its program in accordance with the statements, representa-
tions, and procedures desc.-ibed in the licensee's application dated
August 29, 1988.

1. Attachment 11, Subparts 11.1, 11.1.2, and 11.1.6 of the licensee's
application state that radioactive waste will be placed in
clearly identified receptacles which are appropriately marked
with the radiation standard tag or label and t1at under no
circumstance will radioactive materials be discharged into waste
baskets or other containers which would permit the contamination
of the regular trash.

Contrary to the above, on June 18, 1991, phosphorus 32 waste
located in Room B-316 of the Medical Sciences Building was
placed in a receptacle of biological waste, without any radio-
logical warning signs, and was prepared to be disposed of as
biological waste.
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2. Attachment 10.6.A.3. of the licensee's application states that
all shipments of radioactive materials are to be received in the
Hot Lab (Room R-133 of the Biomedical Building) and in the-
Health Physics Laboratory (Room R-179 of the Biomedical Building)
and inspected by the Health Physics Office staff-prior to
delivery to the user.

Contrary to the above, as of June 19, 1991, packages containing
radioactive materials had been delivered directly to the
Neurobiology Laboratory and had not been initially received and
surveyed by the Health Physics Office staff at the Central
Medical Science Campus prior to delivery to.the user.

3. Attachment 8.2 of the licensee's application states that
candidates for use of radioactive materials in research should
submit evidence of training and experience equivalent to 40
hours of academic radiation disciplines including specific
subjects.

Contrary to the above, on September 19, 1990, November 8, 1990
and November 30, 1990, candidates for use of licensed materials
in research were approved without submitting evidence of
training and experience equivalent to 40 hours of academic
radiation disciplines.

4 Attachment 10.12.of the licensee's application states that the
licensee will establish and implement the model procedure for
area surveys that was published in Appendix N to Regulatory
Guide 10.8, Revision 2 (August 1987). Item 1.e.(Records)of
Appendix N specifies that the licensee will keep records which
include actions taken in the case of excessive dose rates or
contamination and follow up survey information.

Contrary to the above, as of June 18, 1991, records of surveys
performed in the research laboratories did not indicate the
actions taken and follow up survey information for cases
involving excessive dose rates or contamination.

J. 10 CFR 35.22(a)(5) requires the Radiation Safety Comittee to
promptly provide each member with a copy of the meeting minutes.

Contrary to the above, as of June 17, 1991, the Radiation Safety
Committee was not providing copies of the meeting minutes to all
committee members.

K. 10 CFR 35.59(g) requires the licensee to maintain inventory records
of quarterly physical inventories for.all sealed sources and requires
those records to contain specified information including model number
of each source and serial number if one has been assigned.

.
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Contrary to the above, as of June 17, 1991, the licensee was not
recording assigned source model numbers and serial numbers on its
quarterly sealed source inventory records.

L. 10 CFR 35.59(d) requires the licensee to retain leak test records for
five years which contain specified information for all sources
tnted.

Contrary to the above, as of June 17, 1991, records of leak tests
were not maintained for the sixteen Cesium 137 sources received in
August 1990.

These violations have been categorized in the aggregate as a Severity
Level 111 problem (Supplements IV and VI).

Cumulative Civil Penalty - $6,250 (assessed equally among the
15 violations),

11. Violations of License No. 52-01986-04-(College of Natural Sciences)
(Violations Not Assessed A Civil Penalty)

Condition 15 of License No. 52-01986-04 requires that the licensee conduct-
its program in accordance with the statements, representations, and
procedures described in the licensee's application received November 9,
1989, and letter dated July 24, 1990.

1. Procedure 5.c. of Item 10 of the licensee's application states that
the surface of the source container will be checked for contamination
using a cotton swab when initially opening packages-containing
radioactive material.

Contrary to the above, as of June 20, 1991, the surface of source
containers received in Room JGD 217 were not being checked for
contamination when initially opening packages containing material.

'

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).

2. Procedure 5.d. of item 10 of the licensee's application states that
the Radiation Safety Technician is to be notified upon receipt of
ma terial .

Contrary to the above, as of June 20, :991, the Radiation Safety
Technician had not been notified of all receipts of material in Rooms
JGD 107 and JGD 216.

.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement V1).

|
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3. Procedure 10 of item 10 of the licensee's application states that
laboratories using radioactive material will perform surveys at the
end of the experiment and that a permanent record would be kept of I

all survey results, including negative results.
|

(a) Contrary to the above, from February 1991 until June 20, 1991,
required surveys were not performed in Room JGD 217 at the end
of the experiments.

This is a Severity level IV violation (Supplement VI).

(b) Contrary to the above, as of June 20, 1991, a permanent record
of results of all surveys in Room JGD 216, including negative

,
results, was not maintained.

'

|

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement VI).

4 The licensee's letter dated July 24, 1990, states that the Radiation
,

Safety Technician will verify that the researchers complete fonns for l

receiving and handling radioactive material in compliance with the l

standards and regulations established in the license.

Contrary to the above, as of June 20, 1991, the licensee's Radiation i

Safety Technician was not verifying that the forms for receiving and I
ihandling radioactive material were completed properly. Specifically,

the technician was not verifying that the forms demonstrated that
packages were routinely surveyed for contamination prior to opening,
that the technician was being notified of all material receipts and i

'that laboratory surveys were being performed and recorded as required.

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement VI).
|

111. Violations of License No. 52-01986-01 (Agricultural Experiment Station) |

(Violations Not Assessed a Civil Penalty) |
,

A. Condition 17 of License No. 52-01986-01 requires the licensee to
conduct 'a physical inventory every 6 months to account for all
sources and/or devices received and possessed under the license.

Contrary to the above, from October 17, 1990 until June 20, 1991, an
interval.in excess of 6 months, the licensee did not perform inven-
tories to account for all sources and/or devices received and
possessed.

This is a repeat violation (Inspection 90-01).

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).

|
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B. 10 CFR 20,207(a) requires that licensed materials stored in an |
'

unrestricted area be secured against unauthorized removal from the
place of storage. 10 CFR 20.207(b) requires that materials not in
storage be tended under the constant surveillance and immediate
control of the licensee. As defined in 10 CFR 20.3(a)(17),-an
unrestricted area is any area to which-access is not controlled by
the licensee for purposes of protection of individuals from exposure
to radiation and radioactive materials.

Contrary to the above, on June 20, 1991, licensed material consisting
of eleven vials of carbon 14 ranging from 50 microcuries to 386
microcuries per vial stored in an unlocked refrigerator in an open
hallway, an unrestricted area, was not secured against unauthorized
removal, and was not tended under the constant surveillance and
immediate control of the licensee.

This is a Severity level IV violation (Supplement IV).

C. 10 CFR 20.203(e) requires that rooms or areas in which specified
amounts of licensed material are used or stored be conspicuously
posted " Caution - Radioactive Material."

Contrary to the above, on June 20, 1991, a refrigerator which
contained eleven vials of carbon 14 ranging from 50 to 386
microcuries per vial and which was located in an open hallway
was not posted as required.

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement IV).

IV. Violations of License No. 52-10510-04 (Mayaguez Campus)
(Violations Not Assessed A Civil Penalty) ]

A. Condition 20 of License No. 52-10510-04 requires that the licensee
conduct its program in accordance with the statements, representa-
tions, and procedures described in the licensee's application dated'

August 9,1983, which includes the licensee's Radiation Safety
Regulations Manual, and letter dated April 11, 1986.

1. Section 2.2.7.7 of the Radiation Safety Regulations Manual requires
that the Radiation Safety Comittee perform an annual audit of
the radiation safety program.

Contrary to the above, the Radiation Safety Comittee failed to
perform annual audits of the radiation safety program for the
calendar years 1989 and 1990.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).
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2. Section 2.5 of Appendix 2 of the Radiation Safety Regulations |

Manual requires that the Radiation Protection Officer perform. '

inventories of licensed material every six months.

Contrary to the above, between January 1989 and March 1990 and
between May 1990 and June 17, 1991, intervals which exceed six
months, the Radiation Protection Officer failed to perform
inventories of licensed material.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement IV).

3. Section 4.3 of Appendix 4 of the Radiation Safety Regulations
Manual require that laboratory areas where less than 100
microcuries of licensed material are used be surveyed monthly by
each user.

Contrary to the above, from January 1989 to June 17, 1991,
monthly surveys had not been performed in Biology and Chemistry
laboratories which frequently use licensed material in amounts
less than 100 microcuries.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).

4. The licensee's letter dated April 11, 1986, states that the
Radiation Safety Ccanittee will meet no less than once each
fiscal year.

Contrary to the above, the Radiation Safety Comittee failed to
meet during the fiscal year 1989.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).

B. 10 CFR 19.11(a) and (b) require, in part, that the licensee post
current copies of Part 19 Part 20, the license, license conditions,
documents incorporated into the license, license amendments and
operating procedures; or that the licensee post a notice describing
these documents and where they may be examined. 10CFR19.11(c)
requires that a licensee post Form NRC-3, " Notice to Employees." ;

Contrary to the above, on June 19, 1991, the licensce did not have
posted any of the required documents or notices at the Marine
Sciences Laboratory.

This is a Severity Level V violation (Supplement VI).
,

J



.

hotice of Violation 9
.

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, the University of Puerto Rico
(Licensee) is hereby required to submit a written statement or explanation to
the Director, Of fice of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Connission, within
30 days of the date of this Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of
Civil Penalty (Notice). This reply should be clearly marked as a " Reply to a
Nntice of Violation" and should include for each alleged violation: (1)
admission or denial of the alleged violation, (2) the reasons for the violation
if admitted, and if denied, the reasons why, (3) the corrective steps that have
been taken and the results achieved, (4) the corrective steps that will be
taken to avoid further violations, and (5) the date when full compliance will
be achieved. If an adequate reply is not received within the time specified in
this Notice, an order may be issued to show cause why the license should not be
modified, suspended, or revoked or why such other action as may be proper
should not be taken. Consideration may be given to extending the response time
for good cause shown. Under the authority of Section 182 of the Act, 42 U.S.C.
2232, this response shall be submitted under oath or affirmation.

Within the same time as provided for the response required above under
10 CFR 2.201, the Licensee may pay the civil penalty by letter addressed to the
Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, with a
check, draf t, money order, or electronic transfer payable to the Treasurer of
the United States in the amount of the civil penalty proposed above, or the
cumulative amount of the civil penalties if more than one civil penalty is
proposed, or may protest imposition of the civil penalty in whole or in part,
by a written answer addressed to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S.
Nuclear Regulatory Comnission. Should the Licensee fail to answer within the
time specified, an order imposing the civil penalty will be issued. Should the
Licensee elect to file an answer in accordance with 10 CFR 2.205 protesting the
civil penalty, in whole or in part, such answer should be clearly marked as an
" Answer to a Notice of Violation" and may: (1) deny the violations listed in
this Notice in whole or in part, (2) demonstrate extenuating circumstances, (3)
show error in this Notice, or (4) show other reasons why the penalty should not
be imposed. In addition to protesting the civil penelty in whole or in part,
such answer may request remission or mitigation of the penalty,

Section V.B of 10 CFR Part 2. Appendix C (1991)y, the factors addressed inin requesting mitigation of the proposed penalt
, should be addressed. Any

written answer in accordance with 10 CFR 2.205 should be set forth separately
from the statement or explanation in reply pursuant to 10 CFR 2.201, but may
incorporate parts of the 10 CFR 2.201 reply by specific reference (e.g., citing
page and paragraph numbers) to avoid repetition. The attention of the Licensee
is directed to the other provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, regarding the procedure
for imposing a civil penalty.

Upon failure to pay any civil penalty due which subsequently has been deter-
mined in accordance with the applicable provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, this matter

|
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may be referred to the Attorney General, and the penalty, unless compromised,
remitted, or mitigated, may be collected by civil action pursuant to Section
234c of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2282c.

The response noted above (Reply to Notice of Violation, letter with payrnent of
civil penalty, and Answer to a Notice of Violation) should be addressed to:
Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comission, ATTN:
Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555 with a copy to the Regional
Administrator, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comission, Region II, Suite 2900,
101 Marietta Street, N.W., Atlanta, Georgia 30323.

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

' w'cv /

Stewart D. Ebneter
Regional Administrator

Dated at Atlanta, Georgia
this2S/f day of August 1991

I
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